
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

October 20, 2015 
 
 
Re:     15ITB98380K-JAJ Central Library Roof Replacements 
 
 
Dear Proposers: 
 
Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 2, hereby made a part of the above referenced  
15ITB98380K-JAJ Central Library Roof Replacement 
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the 15ITB98380K-JAJ Central 
Library Roof Replacement referenced above remain unchanged and in full force and 
effect. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

James A. Jones 
 
James A. Jones 
Assistant Purchasing Agent  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
15ITB98380K-JAJ Central Library Roof Replacement 
 
Addendum No. 2 
Page Two 
 
 
 
This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original ITB 
documents as noted below: 
 
The date for receipt of bids is hereby changed to October 29, 2015. The time and place 
for receipt of bids remains the same. 
  
Johns Manville is added as an approved manufacturer of TPO Roofing System. 
 
 
Question: Page 3 of 4 on the Bid Form contains items 1-5 to be completed. Items 1-4 
are bblank. Please clarify what is needed for this project? 
 
Answer: The bid form is fro bidders to provide a breakdown fof project costs (use 
additional lines if necessary. 
 

          Question: The Owner-Contractor Agreement shows Liquidated Damages are $500.00  
                  Per day.However, a duration is not given. What is the stated duration for this        
 project? 
 
Answer: The project duration is 365 consecutive calendar days 
 
Question: Specification section 01520, D, 5 calls for pest control services (on a 
temporary basis). Please clarify if this requirement is needed since its an exisiting 
facility. 
 
Answer: Pest Control services wilremain and shall be applicable to areas of project 
scope/and worker gathering places. 
 
Question: 07540-2.4 ROF INSULATION COMPONETS – Will high density,closed sell 
polyisocyanurate ½” thickness be an acceptable cover board? Number 4 nominal 
thickness is not produced by the manufacturers specified. 
 
Answer: 4” insulationis produced by Firestone, Johns Manville, Owens Corning, 
Carlisle and RMaw Operationg among others. Use the insulation recommended by the 
TPO roofing manufacturer. 
 



 

 

Question: Will new tapered insulation be required on the roof areas to be demolished 
(7th and 8th floors, 8th floor roof and penthouse roof)? 
 
Answer:Yes. 
 
Question: If so, is there a minimum requirement fro tapered insulationpanel slope? 
 
Answer: Provide the same slope as the existing roof. 
 
Question: Will a base layer be required? 
 
Answer: Follow the roofing manfacturer’s recommendations.  
 
Question: If any or all of these roof areas do not trequire tapered insulation, what is the 
minimum insuslation of thicknessrequired for these areas? 
 
Answer: All areas require tapered insulation. 
 
Question: The drawings indicate that we are to test all roof drains for leaks and install 
inserts on the ones that do leak. Wehave no way of determining the quantity of leaking 
drains prior tto te bid date. It would be helpful if all bidders were providing the same 
quantity of drain inserts instead of guessing. Please provide a quantity allowance 
amount of drains to be fixed? 
 
Answer: Provide a unit cost for drain inserts. 
 
Question: The drawings call for washing windowsat the 6th floor location per B/A2.1 
and 5th floor on A/A2.1 and 1/A2.3. Please clarify if we are to wash all windows where 
the sealant is removed and replaced or only wash the the indicated windows on the 5th 
and 6th floors? 
 
Answer: Wash all windows where sealant is to be replaced. 
 
Question: I noted that there are several broken and damaged pavers currently located 
on the patio. Please clarify if these broken pavers are to be replaced or reinstalled? If 
replaced, please provide a quantity allowance for all bidders to bid accurately without 
guessing? In addition, if the pavers are to be replaced , please provide specifications for 
the existing pavers. 
 
Answer: Reinstall all existing pavers. 
 
Question: Detail 2/A-1.9 cuts through column line 3 on A-1.9 (Reflected ceiling 
Drawing). Is this detail typical at every beam located on the 8a floor ( column lines 1,1.3, 
2,3 ,4,5,6,6.7, 7 A.8, B.4, C, C.8 and D) or should this detail be cut through the hatched 
areas? If this detail cuts the column lines, then please clarify if we need to replace ther 
ceiling tiled along these column lines? 



 

 

 
Answer: Provide a cost for cleaning, replacing insulation at beams indicated in hatched 
areas only if water damaged. 
 
Question:  There is a typical note on A/1.9 that references detail 2/A-1.8 for new ceiling 
repair. Detail 2/A-1.8 does not exist. Please provide this detail? 
 
Answer: Detail indicated as 2/A-1.8 should read 2/A-1.9. 
 
Question: Detail 2/A-1.9 note that we are to clean and replace fireproofing on columns. 
The columns on the 8th floor are currently covered in gypsum board. Please calrify if this 
note is only talking about exposed columns above the ceiling? 
 
Answer: “Columns” refers to exposed columns above the ceiling. 
 
Question: The ceiling tile on the 8th floor is old and will be difficult to match. Please 
provide a basis of design product for bidding purposes. 
 
Answer: As a basis of design replace approximately 2,975 sq ft of daqmaged tiles. See 
revised Drawing A-1.9. As a basis of design use Armstrong Cirrus Tegular 24x24- #534. 
 
Question: The carpet on the 8th floor is damaged and has numerous locations of wet 
ceiling tiles and fireproofing.Please clarify who is responsible for the clean-up of this 
debris? 
 
Answer: Include cleaning up debris in your cost. 
 
Question: There are numerous light fixtures in the 6th floor ceiling that are damaged 
and not working. PPlease clarify if our contract will include any light fixture repairs or 
replacement? 
 
Answer: Contract will not include replacing damaged light fixtures. 
 
Questions: Please verify if a General Contractor’s License is required ( Form C2) 
 
Answer: Yes 
 
Question: Sheets A-3.4 and A-3.5 show section cuts for the 5th floor roof area. The 
details mention Cold Tar Waterproofing. There is a specification for TPO Rooofing but 
no specificationfor Cold Tar waterproofing. Please clarify. 
 
Answer: Attachment A of this Addendum is the specification for cold tar roofing for the 
5th floor patio. 
 
Question: Sheets A-3.4 and A-3.5 show section cuts for the 5th floor roof area. It 
appears that the details show new cast-in-place concrete sleepers to be insatalled to 



 

 

support the BluestonePavers. If we install continuous sleepers, thare will be no way for 
water to get to the roof drains. Please clarify if adjustable pedestals can be used to 
support the Bluestone Pavers that will allow the water to get to the roof drain? 
 
Answer: The concrete sleepeers have water passage channels cast into them. See 
details 3/A-3.4 and 4/A-3.4. 
 
Questions: The asbestos report shows only one sample of the base flashing was 
tested for asbestos. This sample was taken from the 7th floor and tested positive fro 
asbestos. Please clarify if all the base flashings at the other locations contain asbestos? 
 
Answer: Yes. Presume that base flashings at other locations of work contain asbestos 
as outlined in the report. 
 
Questions: Please clarify if we will be able to store the 4 potted planters from the 5th 
floor patio in a designated area within the building or if we have to remove from the site? 
 
Answer: Permission will be granted by the Library Group to store Planters on site. The 
location to be agreed upon by the Fulton County Library Group. 
 
Question: Please clarify if we will be able to store the artwork from the 5th floor patio in 
a designated area within the building or if we have to remove from site? 
 
Answer: Permission will be granted by the Fulton County Library Group. The location to 
be agreed upon by the Fulton County Library Group. 
 
Question: Please clarify if we will be able to store the pavers from the 5th floor patio in 
the designated area within the building or if we have to remove from the site? 
 
Answer: Permission will be garnted by the Fulton County Library Group. The location to 
be agreed upon by the Fulton County Library Group. 
 
Question: Are the following required that are specified in Section 05120- Temporary 
Facilities and Controls; Part 2.1-B Temporary Facilities, Part 3.1-B-5 Heating and 
Cooling, Part 3.1-B-6 Ventilation and Humidity Control? 
 
Answer: Yes to all of the above. 
 
Question: Is the tapered insulation to match the existing thickness or is there a required 
R-Value or minimum thickness? 
 
Answer: Minimum R value to be R 6.0 per inch. Minimum thickness to be 4 inches. 
 
Question: Four inch HD coverboard is specified, the product is only made in ½ inch. I 
 
Answer: ½ inch is acceptable. 



 

 

 
Question: The specifications say to match the exisiting fascia which is an extruded 
aluminum system by Tremco. It also says to use 24 GA Steel per SMACNA. Which is 
required? 
  
Answer: Match existing Tremco fascia where it is now in place. Other non-Tremco 
flashing shall be minimum 24GA Steel per SMACNA or aluminum if indicated on the 
drawings. 
 
Question: On the fifth floor roof the drawings say to remove the existing waterproofing 
down to the concrete and install three layers of tar based modified bitumen on a layer of 
torch applied modified bitumen. I don’t see a section in the specifications that show the 
products we should use and the execution. Can we get a basis of design?: 
 
Answer: See attachment A. 
 
Question: On that same roof area are we to install new concrete sleepers with plastic 
foam liners. Is there a specific product to be used here?  
 
Answer: The new concrete sleepers will have form liners to provide rain water 
passages. See details3/A-3.4 and 4/A-3.4. Use Greensteak # 30 or equal. 
 
Question: In drawing A3.5-3 it is showing Tremco Flashing at the walls. Which flashing 
material is specified and are there any alternatives. 
 
Answer: On detail 3/A-3.5 the reference to Trmco flashing should read” Aluminum 
Flashing”. The critical Tremco flashing detail that must be met is shown on detail 2/A-
3.3 
 
Question: In drawing A3.3-2 it says to remove all nailer at the perimeter fascia and 
replace with new. Typically we only replace what is required at a unit6 cost. Is removal 
of all required? 
 
Answer: Yes, remove and replace all wood blocking as shown on 2?A-3.3. 
 
Question: In drawing A1.9 it says to replace approximately 1225 sq.ft. of ceiling tile. Is 
this what we should base our bid on? 
 
Answer: Base you cost estimate on 2,975 sq.ft. and see revised drawing A-1.9. 
 
Question:In the same drawing it says to replace damaged fireproofing and batt 
insulation. Is there an estimated footage to base our bid on?” Ife so, will there be a unit 
cost fo add/deduct if the number is different? 
 
Answer: Provide an estimated unit cost for add/deduct if the number is different. See 
revised Drawing A-1.9 Attachment B. 



 

 

 
Question:  There is a conflict between drawings and written specification regarding the 
drains. Drawings say to use retrofits and the specifications say to replace existing 
drainbnowls and strainers. Please clarify? 
 
Answer: Remove existing drain bowls and stariners and replace with new ones. See 
4/A3.5. See revised Section 15086- Drain Pipe Lining and Strainers( See Attachment 
C), Part 1- General 1.1 Summary, A B and C. 
 
Question: Are we going to be able to use the corner of Fairlie Street and Williams 
Street as a setup area with a dumpster? If not, where will a dumpster and a setup area 
be allowed  for material delivery. 
 
Answer: What is placed on City streets and where it may be placed must be approved 
by the City of Atlanta through the permitting process. 
 
Question: Is a UL Master Label required on this project or is a UL Inspectionand Letter 
of Finding sufficient? 
 
Answer: Follow the specifications. 
 
Question:  The specifications states that all materials shall be copper/bronze, however 
the current system is all aluminum. Will it be acceptable to install an aluminum Class II 
roof top system?  
 
Answer: Follow the specificstions. 
 
Question: The specifications are requesting that we conduct ground resistance testing. 
Are conductors exposed in the basement for testing? 
 
Answer: Assume that there are exposed conductors in the basement for testing. 
 

 
 
         

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO. 2 
   
The undersigned proposer acknowledges receipt of this addendum by returning one (1) 
copy of this form with the proposal package to the Department of Purchasing & Contract 
Compliance, Fulton County Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, Suite 1168, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the ITB due date and time  Thursday, October 29, 2015, 
11:00 A.M. 
 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 2, __________ day of ____________, 
2015. 
 
________________________________ 
Legal Name of Bidder 
 
       
________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
________________________________ 
Title 
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SECTION 07213 


BUILT-UP COLD-TAR ROOFING 


PART 1 GENERAL 


1.1 GENERAL NOTES 


A. Contractor will observe all published safety prevention policies and practices 
B. Preceding job start up, contractor shall decide to his satisfaction that all 


specifications contained herein are workable. 
C. Contractor will perform all work by competent, trained, and properly equipped 


personnel in strict accordance with good roofing practices and applicable industry 
standards, relating to application of roofing system and related work. All federal, 
state, and local codes shall be followed. 


D. Contractor will follow application, safety, etc. information as published in the most 
current edition of the Manufacture's Cold-Tar Roofing System Technical 
Specification. 


E. Contractor will submit a safety plan for review by the County and the Architect. 


1.2 WORK INCLUDED 


A. Work under this section covers the installation of a new Cold-Tar Built-Up roofing 
system on the s" Floor Patio sub floor at the Atlanta-Fulton County Central Library, 
Atlanta, GA. In addition, contractor shall include all related items of work as noted 
herein or indicated on the drawings or otherwise required to complete the specified 
elements of work and provide the necessary warranties for this work. 


B. Contractor will remove the existing roof system to the existing concrete deck and 
dispose of all materials properly. Any asbestos removal shall comply with state and 
local codes and requirements and shall be disposed of in a legal manner. 


1.3 SECTION INCLUDES 


A. Built-up coal-tar roofing. 
B. Membrane flashing installation. 
C. Removal and storage, at Owner's indicated location, of existing stone pavers for 


reinsta Ilation. 
D. Removal of roof drains and replacement with new roof drains. 
E. Removal of concrete sleepers and replacement of new sleepers as indicated on 


Contract Drawings. 


1.4 DEFINITIONS 


A. See "The NRCA Roofing and Waterproofing Manual" for definition of terms related to 
built-up roofing. 


B. Bitumen: A generic term for either asphalt or coal-tar pitch. 


1.5 SUBMITTALS 
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A copy of this specification section, with addendum updates included, and all referenced 
and applicable sections, with addendum updates included, with each paragraph check­ 
marked to indicate specification compliance or marked to indicate requested deviations 
from specification requirements. Check marks (,/) shall denote full compliance with a 
paragraph as a whole. If deviations from the specifications are indicated, and therefore 
requested by the Contractor, each deviation shall be underlined and denoted by a 
number in the margin to the right of the identified paragraph, referenced to a detailed 
written explanation of the reasons for requesting the deviation. The Construction 
Manager shall be the final authority for determining acceptability of requested deviations. 
The remaining portions of the paragraph not underlined shall signify compliance on the 
part of the Contractor with the specifications. Failure to include a copy of the marked-up 
specification sections, along with justification(s) for any requested deviations to the 
specification requirements, with the submittal shall be sufficient cause for rejection of the 
entire submittal with no further consideration. 


A. Product Data: 
1. Submit copies of Manufacture's Technical Information Sheets (TIS) for primary 


products used including roof membrane, splice tape, fasteners, and batten strip. 
B. Samples: 


1. Submit samples of roof membrane. 
C. Application Information: 


1. Submit copy of Manufacture's application specification. 
D. Letter attesting that Manufacture's currently licensed roofing contractor. 
E. Warranty: Submit warranty sample. 
F. Pre Installation Notice: 


1. Submit copy of Manufacture's Pre Installation Notice (PIN) that has been 
accepted and approved by Manufacture. 


1.6 QUALIFICATIONS 


A. Manufacturer: 
1. Company providing a no dollar limit, single source roof system warranty that is 


backed by corporate assets. 
2. System supplier must have ISO 9002 certification 


B. Applicator: 
1. Shall be a Manufacture's Licensed Contractor. 
2. Shall have at least five years experience in installing Cold-Tar Built-Up Roofing 


systems. 


1.7 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 


A. Conform to applicable local building code requirements. 
B. Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. (UL): Class A Fire Hazard Classification. 


1.8 QUALITY INSPECTION/OBSERVATION 
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A. Inspection by Manufacturer: Provide a final inspection of the roofing system by a 
Technical Representative employed by roofing system manufacturer. 
1. Technical Representative shall not perform any sales functions. 
2. Contractor shall complete any necessary repairs required for issuance of 


warranty. 


1.9 PRE-INSTALLATION CONFERENCE 


A. Before start of roofing work, the contractor shall arrange a meeting with installer, 
roofing manufacturers' field representative, and other trades whose work affects 
installation of roofing materials at project site to review procedures and time 
schedule proposed for installation of roofing which is coordinated with other related 
work. 


1.10 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 


A. Deliver products in manufacturer's original containers dry, undamaged, seals and 
labels intact and legible. 


B. Store all materials clear of ground and moisture with weather protective covering. 
C. Keep all combustible materials away from ALL ignition sources. 


1.11 ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 


A. Install roofing membrane only when surfaces are clean, dry, smooth and free of 
snow or ice. 


B. Do not apply roofing membrane during inclement weather or when ambient 
conditions will not allow proper application. Consult Manufacture's Technical 
Specifications on cold weather application. 


1.12 WARRANTY 


A. Type/Term: 
1. Provide 20 year Warranty. Warranty shall include membrane, edge metal and 


flashing and membrane accessories. 
B. Coverage: 


1. Scope of coverage: 
Repair any leak in the Cold-Tar Roofing System caused by manufacturing defect 
in manufacture's materials, and the workmanship used to install these materials. 


PART 2 PRODUCTS 


2.1 MANUFACTURERS - MEMBRANE MATERIALS 


A. Basis of Design 
1. GAF, GAFGLAS #80 ULTIMA Base Sheet, RUBBEROID MOP Smooth 


Membrane 
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B. Available Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, manufacturers 
offering products that may be incorporated into the Work include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 
1. Firestone Building Products 
2. Barrett Company 
3. APOC Cold Process Built-up Roofing 


2.2 MANUFACTURERS - MEMBRANE MATERIALS 


A. Base-Sheet Materials 
1. Base Sheet: GAFGLAS #80 Ultima Base Sheet asphalt coated glass-reinforced 


base sheet meeting ASTM 04601, Type II 
B. Roofing Membrane Plies 


1. 3 Plies of RUBEROID MOP SMOOTH SBS Polymer-modified asphalt mat 
meeting ASTM D6164, Type I, Grade S 


2. Eight (8) inch wide strips of RUBEROID MOP SMOOTH SBS Polymer-modified 
asphalt mat applied directly beneath the concrete sleepers. 


C. Bitumen Materials 
1. Cold-Applied Adhesive: Roofing manufacturer's standard asphalt-based, one or 


two-part, asbestos-free, cold-applied adhesive specially formulated for 
compatibility and use with built-up roofing sheets. 


3. SBS-Modified Asphalt Flashing Cement: Roofing manufacturer's standard, 
asbestos free, of consistency required for application. 


5. Cold Coal-Tar Roofing Cement: ASTM 0 5643, coal-tar-based roofing cement, 
asbestos free. 


6. Metal Flashing Sheet: Metal flashing sheet is specified in Division 07 Section 
"Sheet Metal Flashing And Trim". 


8. Metal Termination Bars: As indicated on Contract Drawings 
9. Miscellaneous Accessories: Provide miscellaneous accessories recommended 


by built-up roofing manufacturer. 


PART 3 INSTALLATION 


3.1 PREPARATION 


A. Remove and dispose of all old roofing down to the deck. The deck shall be cleaned, 
repaired and conditioned to conform to the requirements of a new deck. 


B. Remove all old flashing and counter flashing and strip from walls and curbs. 
C. Remove existing roof drains and replace with new metal drains with metal clamping 


rings. 
D. Remove and store pavers on site and reinstall when membranes and new sleepers 


are in place. 
E. Remove existing concrete sleepers. 
F. Examination 


1. Examine substrates, areas, and conditions, with Installer present, for 
compliance with the following requirements and other conditions affecting 
performance of roofing system: 
a. Verify that roof openings and penetrations are in place and curbs and roof 


drain bodies are securely clamped in place. 
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b. Verify that concrete substrate is visibly dry and free of moisture. Test for 
capillary moisture by plastic sheet method according to ASTM D 4263. 


2. Proceed with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been 
corrected. 


G. Preparation 
1. Clean substrate of dust, debris, moisture, and other substances detrimental to 


roofing installation according to roofing manufacturer's written instructions. 
Remove sharp projections. 


2. Prevent materials from entering and clogging roof drains and conductors and 
from spilling or migrating onto surfaces of other construction. Remove roof-drain 
plugs when no work is taking place or when rain is forecast. 


3. Prime surface of concrete deck with asphalt primer, as per manufacturer's 
written instructions. 


3.2 ADHESIVES 


A. Apply cold adhesive in a uniform layer, without voids, starting at the low point or the 
drains. 
1. Pour or spray adhesive at rate recommended by the base and ply sheet 


manufacturer. 
2. Apply the adhesive so that the substrate is covered in a pattern slightly larger 


the first sheet applied. 
3. End laps and selvage laps of the base sheet being lapped must be coated with 


adhesive so that a visible bead of adhesive appears. Roll all laps with weighted 
roller to ensure full contact with the adhesive and proper adhesion. 


4. Allow 5 to 15 minutes for solvents to evaporate from the adhesive (Le. tack time 
or open time) before embedding any sheets into newly applied adhesive. (Note: 
this is only a guide. Tack times depend on such variables as ambient 
temperatures, humidity, wind, and cloud cover.) 


3.3 BASE AND INTERPL Y SHEETS 


A. Install one base sheet and three ply sheets and one additional strip beneath the 
concrete sleepers. 
1. Cut base/interply sheets into 18' - 30' length and allow to relax prior to re-rolling 


and final installation. 
2. Apply adhesive so that a small bead shows at the edge of the membrane. Do 


not allow heavy flows of adhesive to extend beyond the membrane edge. 
3. In the event a wrinkle or a "fishmouth" forms during the application of the 


membrane, do not "walk it down" as the memory of the sheet of felt may cause it 
to reappear. Fishmouths or wrinkles shall be sliced open and patched with 
adhesive and additional membranes. Avoid cutting into the plies below the 
fishmouth or wrinkle by angling the knife blade to the side. 


4. One-ply base sheet application: Install full width sheets, lapping either on the 
sides and on ends as recommended by the manufacturer's written instructions. 
Stagger adjacent end laps a minimum of 18" apart. 


5. Insure that the membrane lies flat in the cold adhesive. There must be complete 
adhesion between the cap sheet and the cold adhesive. Brooming in may be 
necessary under certain conditions to insure that the cap sheet adheres solidly 
to the cold adhesive. Apply extra pressure to avoid creating open channels 
where three or more membranes are lapped. 
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3.4 FLASHING 


A. Refer to the construction details on Drawings A-3.4 and A-3.5, which depict flashing 
requirements for typically encountered conditions. Install flashing materials as 
shown in the construction details 
1. Base flashing constructions require a minimum two ply construction. 
2. Install flashing sheets starting at low points 
3. Use only trowel grade modified bitumen adhesive. 
4. Base flashing should extend a minimum of 8" and a maximum of 24" above the 


concrete filler line. 
5. Roof Drains: Clamp built-up roofing, flashing, and stripping into roof-drain 


clamping ring. 


3.5 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL 


A. Testing Agency: Perform roof tests and inspections, observe flood tests, and 
prepare test reports. 
1. Flood Testing: Flood test each roofing membrane area for leaks, according to 


recommendations in ASTM D 5957, after completing roofing and flashing but 
before overlying construction is placed. Install temporary containment 
assemblies, plug or dam drains, and flood with potable water. 
a. Flood to an average depth of 2-1/2 inches with a minimum depth of 1 inch 


and not exceeding a depth of 4 inches. Maintain 2 inches of clearance from 
top of base flashing. 


b. Flood each area for 24 hours. 
c. After flood testing, repair leaks, repeat flood tests, and make further repairs 


until roofing and flashing installations are watertight. 
2. Repair or remove and replace components of roofing system where test results 


or inspections indicate that they do not comply with specified requirements. 
a. Additional testing and inspecting, at Contractor's expense, will be performed 


to determine compliance of replaced or additional work with specified 
requirements. 


B. Protecting and Cleaning 
1. Protect built-up roofing from damage and wear during remainder of construction 


period. When remaining construction will not affect or endanger roofing, inspect 
roofing for deterioration and damage, describing its nature and extent in a 
written report, with copies to the Owner and Architect. 


2. Correct deficiencies in or remove built-up roofing that does not comply with 
requirements, repair substrates, and repair or reinstall roofing system to a 
condition free of damage and deterioration at time of Substantial Completion 
and according to warranty requirements. 


3. Clean overspray and spillage from adjacent construction using cleaning agents 
and procedures recommended by manufacturer of affected construction. 


END OF SECTION 07213 
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SECTION 15086 
 


DRAIN PIPE LINING and STRAINERS 
 
PART 1 - GENERAL 
 
1.1 SUMMARY 
 


A.  Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required to test existing roof 
storm water drainage systems for leakage.  


 
B. Provide for demolishing existing roof strainers and drain bowls and replacing with new.   
  
C. Provide for drain reconstruction of pipelines and conduits that are determined to leak by the 


installation of a resin-impregnated flexible tube liners that is either inverted or pulled into the 
original pipeline/conduit and expanded to fit tightly against said pipeline by the use of water or air 
pressure. The resin system shall then be cured by elevating the temperature of the fluid (water/air) 
used for the inflation to a sufficient enough level for the initiators in the resin to effect a 
thermosetting reaction 


 
1.2 REFERENCES 
 


A. Standards of the following as referenced: 
1. ASTM D5813 (Standard Specification for Cured-in-Place Thermosetting Resin Sewer Pipe)  
2. ASTM F1216 (Standard Practice for Rehabilitation of Existing Pipelines and Conduits by the 


Inversion and Curing of a Resin-Impregnated Tube) 
3. ASTM F1743 (Standard Practice for Rehabilitation of Existing Pipelines and Conduits by 


Pulled-In-Place Installation of Cured-In-Place Thermosetting Resin Pipe).  
 
1.3 QUALICIFACTION REQUIREMENTS 
 


A. Products and Installers seeking approval must meet all of the following criteria to be deemed 
commercially acceptable: 
1. A minimum of 50,000 linear feet and/or 300 line sections must have been successfully 


installed. 
2. The Installer must have at least five years active experience in the commercial installation of 


the product bid. 
3. The Installer’s key personnel shall have at least 100,000 linear feet and/or 300 line sections of 


successful experience. 
 
1.4 SUBMITTALS 


A copy of this specification section, with addendum updates included, and all referenced and 
applicable sections, with addendum updates included, with each paragraph check-marked to 
indicate specification compliance or marked to indicate requested deviations from specification 
requirements.  Check marks () shall denote full compliance with a paragraph as a whole.  If 
deviations from the specifications are indicated, and therefore requested by the Contractor, each 
deviation shall be underlined and denoted by a number in the margin to the right of the identified 
paragraph, referenced to a detailed written explanation of the reasons for requesting the deviation.  
The Construction Manager shall be the final authority for determining acceptability of requested 
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deviations.  The remaining portions of the paragraph not underlined shall signify compliance on the 
part of the Contractor with the specifications.  Failure to include a copy of the marked-up 
specification sections, along with justification(s) for any requested deviations to the specification 
requirements, with the submittal shall be sufficient cause for rejection of the entire submittal with 
no further consideration. 


 
A. Product data:   


1. Manufacturer´s specifications. 
2. Installation instructions  


 
B. Certifications 


1. Manufacturer’s certification that the materials to be used meet the referenced standards and 
these specifications. 


2. License or certificate verifying Manufacturer’s/Licensor’s approval of the installer. 
 
C. Shop Drawings: Roof plan showing layout of roof drains, laterals and vertical pipes to be lined. 


 
1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 
 


A. Storage and handling: 
1. Store materials under cover, off ground: protect from moisture. 
2. Deliver insulation in packages labeled with material name, thermal value and product code. 
3. When stored outdoors, stack on pallets above ground or roof deck and cover with tarpaulin or 


other suitable waterproof coverings.  
 


1.6 PROJECT CONDITIONS 


A. Do not install lining when weather conditions are unsuitable for proper curing of the resin. 


PART 2 - PRODUCTS 
 
2.1 MATERIALS 
 


A. The Tube 
1. The tube shall consist of one or more layers of a flexible needled felt or an equivalent 


nonwoven or woven material, or a combination of nonwoven and woven materials, capable of 
carrying resin and withstanding the installation pressures and curing temperatures. 


2. The tube should be compatible with the resin system to be used on this project. 
3. The material should be able to stretch to fit irregular pipe sections and negotiate bends. 
4. The tube should be fabricated to a size that, when installed, will tightly fit the internal 


circumference and the length of the original conduit. 
5. Any plastic film applied to the tube on what will finished CIPP shall be compatible with the 


resin system used, translucent enough that the resin is clearly visible, and shall be firmly 
bonded to the felt material. 


  
B. The Resin System 


1. The Resin System. The resin system shall be a corrosion resistant epoxy and catalyst system 
that when properly cured meets the minimum requirements given herein or those that are to 
be utilized in the design of the CIPP for this project. 
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C. Acceptable manufacturers, subject to compliance with specified requirements: 
1. Bradenton Pipe Lining Company 
2. BlueWorks, Inc. 
3. Engineered Lining Systems, Inc. 
4. Enviro-Flow Pipe and Conduit Services, Ltd. 
5. Fletch-Barney, LLC 
6. Nu Flo 


 
D. Drain Strainers and Bodies 


1. Roof Drains:  The drains shall replace the existing drains and to be compatible with the existing 
drain connections.  The drains shall be dome type, cast iron designed for use with rigid insulation 
and shall have anchor flange and membrane clamp of tongue and grove design to securely grip 
the membrane and roof flashing material. 


 
E. Acceptable manufacturers, subject to compliance with specified requirements include: 


1. MIFAB 
2. J. R. Smith 
3/ Josam 
4. Sioux Chief 


 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 
 
3.1 TESTING 
 


A. General:  All testing shall be performed by experienced personnel in compliance with city, state and 
federal regulations.  Suitably brace horizontal section of drains to prevent horizontal movement. This 
must be done by the use of a brace, block, rodding or other suitable method, to prevent movement or 
joint separation. 
 


B. Isolate each floor or section being tested by inserting plugs into the test tees in the stacks.  Plug all 
other openings with test plugs. 
 


C. Slowly fill the system with water at its highest point. Water test with ten feet of hydrostatic pressure 
(4.3 pounds per square inch). 
 


D. Allow any trapped air to escape as the water level rises. Note: Failure to remove entrapped air may 
cause faulty test results. 
 


E.  After filling the stack to ten feet of head, visually inspect the section being tested for any leaks 
around its joints. 
 


F. Water test each portion of the system for 15 minutes and determine if there is a drop in water level 
indicating a leak. 
 


G.  After a successful test, drain the system and prepare the next section for testing 
 
3.2 INSTALLATION 
 


A. General:  The CIPP shall be installed in accordance with the practices given in ASTM F1216 or 
ASTM F1743. 
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B. Resin: The quantity of resin used for the tube’s impregnation shall be sufficient to fill the volume of 


air voids in the tube with additional allowances being made for polymerization shrinkage and the 
anticipated loss of any resin through cracks and irregularities in the original pipe wall. 
 


C. Temperature: Temperature gauges shall be placed at the upstream and downstream ends of the 
reach being lined to monitor the pressurized fluid’s (air or water) temperature. 
    


D. Curing: Curing of the resin system shall be as per the Manufacturer (Licensor) of the CIPP 
product. The temperatures achieved and the duration of holding the pressurized fluid at those 
temperatures shall be per the Manufacturer’s (Licensor’s) established procedures. 


 
3.3 EXAMINATION 
 


A. The interior of the pipe-line shall be carefully inspected to determine the location of any conditions 
that may prevent proper installation of the CIPP into the pipelines, and it shall be noted so that 
these conditions may be corrected 


 
B. A videotape and suitable log shall be kept for later reference by the Owner. 
 
C. Start of installation indicates installer accepts conditions of existing drain lines. 
 


3.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE PROCEDURES 
 


A. Contractor shall post-TV the completed work. The television inspection should be used to confirm 
tightness of the fit of the CIPP to the host pipe and to identify any imperfections. 


 
B. The finished liner shall be continuous over its entire length and be free from visual defects such as 


foreign inclusions, dry spots, pinholes, and delamination.  
 
3.5 CLEANING / PROTECTION 
 


A. Remove trash and construction debris from the roof. 
 
B. Broom clean the site adjacent to the roof drains in preparation for the work of the next trade.  
 


END OF SECTION 15086   





